6. Conduct of Votes by Electronic Device
ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER JANUARY 4,
1995

The Chair wishes to enunciate a clear policy with respect to the conduct of electronic votes.

As Members are aware, clause 5 of rule XV provides that Members shall have not less than 15 minutes in which to answer an ordinary rollcall vote or quorum call. The rule obviously establishes 15 minutes as a minimum. Still, with the cooperation of the Members, a vote can easily be completed in that time. The events of October 30, 1991, stand out as proof of this point. On that occasion, the House was considering a bill in the Committee of the Whole under a special rule that placed an overall time limit on the amendment process, including the time consumed by rollcalls. The Chair announced, and then strictly enforced, a policy of closing electronic votes as soon as possible after the guaranteed period of 15 minutes. Members appreciated and cooperated with the Chair's enforcement of the policy on that occasion.

The Chair desires that the example of October 30, 1991, be made the regular practice of the House. To that end, the Chair enlists the assistance of all Members in avoiding the unnecessary loss of time in conducting the business of the House. The Chair encourages all Members to depart for the Chamber promptly upon the appropriate bell and light signal. As in recent Congresses, the cloakrooms should not forward to the Chair requests to hold a vote by electronic device, but should simply apprise inquiring Members of the time remaining on the voting clock.

Although no occupant of the Chair would prevent a Member who is in the well of the chamber before the announcement of the result from casting his or her vote, each occupant of the Chair will have the full support of the Speaker in striving to close each electronic vote at the earliest opportunity. Members should not rely on signals relayed from outside the chamber to assume that votes will be held open until they arrive in the chamber.

# 7. Requests for Leave of Committees to Sit During the Five-Minute Rule

The SPEAKER'S statement in the 98th Congress on March 3, 1983, with respect to requests for leave of committees to sit during the five-minute rule, will again apply during the 104th Congress, except that the Chair, under clause 2 of rule XI, may entertain a motion of the Majority Leader granting such leave to one or more committees.

ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER, MARCH 3, 1983

The SPEAKER. The Chair announces that he will recognize Members to make requests for committees to sit during the 5-minute rule only at certain times during the legislative day. While the precedents indicate that such requests when pending are not votes requiring the presence of a quorum, the Chair wishes to avoid the need for a call of the House pending such requests but at the same time to assure predictability as to when he will accord recognition. Therefore, the Speaker intends to set up the following guidelines:

First as has been established by precedent, permission to sit shall require unanimous consent if the permission pertains to a day for which the program has not been announced. Thus, prior to the announcement of the legislative program for the following week, only one objection would be required to prevent a committee from sitting. Following the announcement by the Majority Leader, or his designee, of the program for the next week, the Chair would entertain requests for committees to sit during the following week and 10 objections would then be

required. The Chair wants it to be clearly understood that the first available opportunity in the House following the announcement of the program is an appropriate time for considering requests pertaining to the following week if the announcement comes before the completion of all legislative business.

Second, the Chair will not entertain requests on days when all votes on legislative matters have been postponed to a later date; however, the Chair will accept requests for committee hearings to be held later in the week if the request has the concurrence of the ranking minority member of the committee or subcommittee.

Third, on days when legislative business is to be conducted, and when rollcall votes are in order on legislation, the Chair will recognize during the 1-minute period only when he is assured that the ranking minority member of the committee or subcommittee involved supports the requests for the hearings or meetings.

Requests that have been objected to by 10 or more Members pursuant to clause 2(i) of Rule XI may not be renewed on the same day unless the Chair is assured that the objections have been withdrawn. The Chair will in no instance entertain requests after the legislative business of the day has been concluded; that is, after leaves of absence have been laid down or unanimous consent requests from the majority and minority tables have been entertained at the end of the day.

# □ 0220

# COMMUNICATION FROM THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE

The SPEAKER laid before the House the following communication from the Clerk of the House of Representatives:

OFFICE OF THE CLERK,
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
Washington, DC, January 4, 1995.
Hon. Newt Gingrich,

The Speaker, U.S. House of Representatives, Washington, DC.

DEAR MR. SPEAKER. Under Clause 4 of Rule III of the Rules of the U.S. House of Representatives, I herewith designate Ms. Linda Nave, Deputy Clerk, to sign any and all papers and do all other acts for me under the name of the Clerk of the House which she would be authorized to do by virtue of this designation, except such as are provided by statute, in case of my temporary absence or disability.

This designation shall remain in effect for the 104th Congress or until modified by me. With great respect, I am

Sincerely yours,

ROBIN H. CARLE, Clerk, U.S. House of Representatives.

# ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER

The SPEAKER. If I might before the gentleman from New York [Mr. SOLOMON] moves to adjourn, let the Chair say to the Members that the House has now been in session for some 14 hours and 25 minutes. I think it has been not only the longest and most working-like opening session, but one of the most productive sessions for any single day in House history. The Chair wants to thank both the Democrat Members and the Republican Members for participating. The Chair wants to thank the freshmen on both sides because there was very vigorous and effective in-

volvement, and that is the way it should be. We are in an age when people get elected to do the job from day one, and we are very grateful for their participation. The Chair wishes to express to all Members his immense gratitude for this opening day and how much he hopes this augers well for the future and what we can do together.

### INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

The SPEAKER. Under a previous order of the House, the gentleman from Michigan [Mr. DINGELL] is recognized for 5 minutes.

Mr. DINGELL. Mr. Speaker, I am today introducing five pieces of legislation that received overwhelming bipartisan support in the last Congress. They cover a range of important issues the 104th Congress must address: telecommunications reform, Superfund reform, safe drinking water, and interstate waste and flow control.

These bills are largely the same as the final versions of the legislation written or acted upon by the Commerce Committee or the House in the last Congress. Interstate waste and flow control passed the House by unanimous consent. Safe drinking water was approved under the suspension calendar. Superfund was approved by a 44-0 margin in committee. And the House approved telecommunications reform by a vote of 423-5.

The telecommunications legislation will reform our Nation's outdated telecommunications laws, and create an environment where competition, rather than government regulation, will govern the services that customers will have available. The text of the bill that I am introducing today is identical to last year's, with two exceptions:

First, the requirement for the Justice Department to hold a hearing in every case in which a Bell Operating company requests relief has been deleted. This requirement imposed administrative burdens on the Justice Department, yet served no useful purpose. At the request of the Justice Department, it has been deleted.

Second, there was some confusion last year about a provision that could have delayed Bell Company entry into certain long distance markets as a result of an ambiguity in the statute. During the House consideration of the legislation, Chairman Brooks and I engaged in a colloquy to clarify that ambiguity. I have made changes in the text of the legislation I am introducing today to conform the statutory text with the colloquy.

The interstate waste and flow control bills resolve some long-standing disputes between state and municipal governments, and between different regions of the country. The Superfund reform had the support of a broad coalition of industry, small business, State and local governments, the environmental community, banks, and many

others. It will make the cleanup of toxic waste sites more efficient and more economical, and will restore some sense of reason and fairness to the liability system. The Safe Drinking Water Act revisions uphold water quality standards while accounting for the special needs of smaller communities.

All of these bills were the product of extensive discussions and negotiations involving the full range of interests. While these are good bills in their current form, I neither expect nor ask the 104th Congress to enact these measures without full discussion or amendment. I am prepared, and even eager, to work with my Republican colleagues in fashioning productive legislation that achieves the same solid degree of consensus we were able to reach last year. I am introducing these bills today in that spirit of cooperation.

# LEAVE OF ABSENCE

By unanimous consent, leave of absence was granted to:

Ms. Brown of Florida (at the request of Mr. Gephardt) for today after 10:15 p.m. on account of illness.

### SPECIAL ORDERS GRANTED

By unanimous consent, permission to address the House, following the legislative program and any special orders heretofore entered, was granted to:

The following Member (at the request of Mr. FAZIO of California) to revise and extend his remarks and include extraneous material:

Mr. DINGELL for 5 minutes today.

The following Member (at the request of Mr. LAZIO of New York) to revise and extend his remarks and include extraneous material:

Mr. EHLERS for 5 minutes on January

# ADJOURNMENT

Mr. SOLOMON. Mr. Speaker, I move that the House do now adjourn.

The motion was agreed to; accordingly (at 2 o'clock and 24 minutes a.m.), the House adjourned until today, Thursday, January 5, 1995, at 10 a.m.

### OATH OF OFFICE MEMBERS, RESI-DENT COMMISSIONER, AND DEL-EGATES

The oath of office required by the sixth article of the Constitution of the United States, and as provided by section 2 of the act of May 13, 1884 (23 State. 22), to be administered to Members, Resident Commissioner, and Delegates of the House of Representatives, the text of which is carried in 5 U.S.C. 3331:

I, AB, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the United States against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties

of the office on which I am about to enter. So help me  $\mbox{\rm God}.$ 

has been subscribed to in person and filed in duplicate with the Clerk of the House of Representatives by the following Member of the 103d Congress, pursuant to the provisions of 2 U.S.C. 25.

Honorable Steve Largent, 1st District Okla-

Honorable Steve Largent, 1st District Oklahoma

# BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS APPROVED BY THE PRESIDENT

The President notified the Clerk of the House that on the following dates he had approved and signed bills and joint resolutions of the following titles:

#### FEBRUARY 12, 1994

H.R. 3759, An Act making emergency supplemental appropriations for the fiscal year ending September 30, 1994, and for other purposes.

### FEBRUARY 16, 1994

H.R. 1303, An Act to designate the Federal Building and United States Courthouse located at 402 East State Street in Trenton, New Jersey, as the "Clarke S. Fisher Federal Building and United States Courthouse".

H.R. 2223, An Act to designate the Federal Building located at 525 Griffin Street in Dallas, Texas, as the "A. Maceo Smith Federal Building".

H.R. 2555, An Act to designate the Federal building located at 100 East Fifth Street in Cincinnati, Ohio, as the "Potter Stewart United States Courthouse".

H.R. 3186, An Act to designate the United States courthouse located in Houma, Louisiana, as the "George Arceneaux, Jr., United States Courthouse."

H.R. 3356, An Act to designate the United States courthouse under construction at 611 Broad Street, in Lake Charles, Louisiana, as the "Edwin Ford Hunter, Jr., United States Courthouse".

### MARCH 9, 1994

H.R. 2339, An act to revise and extend the programs of the Technology-Related Assistance for Individuals With Disabilities Act of 1988, and for other purposes.

H.R. 3617, An Act to amend the Everglades National Park Protection and Expansion Act of 1989, and for other purposes.

# MARCH 30, 1994

H.R. 3345, An Act to provide temporary authority to Government agencies relating to voluntary separation incentive payments, and for other purposes.

# MARCH 31, 1994

H.R. 1804, An Act to improve learning and teaching by providing a national framework for education reform; to promote the research, consensus building, and systemic changes needed to ensure equitable educational opportunities and high levels of educational achievement for all students; to provide a framework for reauthorization of all Federal education programs; to promote the development and adoption of a voluntary national system of skill standards and certifications; and for other purposes.

H.R. 4122, An Act to temporarily extend certain provisions of the Marine Mammal Protection Act.

# APRIL 6, 1994

H.J. Res. 329, Joint Resolution designating March 23, 1994, as "Education and Sharing Day, U.S.A.".

### APRIL 30, 1994

H.R. 2333, An Act to authorize appropriations for the Department of State, the United States Information Agency, and related agencies, and for other purposes.

H.R. 4066, An Act to suspend temporarily the duty on the personal effects of participants in, and certain other individuals associated with, the 1994 World Cup Soccer Games, the 1994 World Rowing Championships, the 1995 Special Olympics World Games, the 1996 Summer Olympics, and the 1996 Paralympics.

#### MAY 4, 1994

H.R. 821, An Act to amend title 38, United States Code, to extend eligibility for burial in national cemeteries to persons who have 20 years of service creditable for retired pay as members of a reserve component of the Armed Forces and to their dependents.

H.R. 2884. An Act to establish a national framework for the development of School-to-Work Opportunities systems in all States, and for other purposes.

H.R. 3693. An Act to designate the United States Courthouse under construction in Denver, Colorado, as the "Byron White United States Courthouse".

### MAY 16, 1994

H.J. Res. 239. Joint Resolution to authorize the President to proclaim September 1994 as "Classical Music Month"

H.R. 4204. An Act to designate the Federal building located at 711 Washington Street in Boston, Massachusetts, as the "Jean Mayer Human Nutrition Research Center on Aging".

### MAY 19, 1994

H.R. 1134. An Act to provide for the transfer of certain public lands located in Clear Creek County, Colorado, to the Forest Service, the State of Colorado, and certain local governments in the State of Colorado, and for other purposes.

H.R. 1727. An Act to establish a program of grants to States for arson research, prevention, and control, and for other purposes.

### MAY 25, 1994

H.J. Res. 303. Joint Resolution to designate June 6, 1994, as "D-Day National Remembrance Day".

H.R. 2868. An Act to designate the Federal building located at 600 Camp Street in New Orleans, Louisiana, as the "John Minor Wisdom United States Court of Appeals Building", and for other purposes.

# MAY 31, 1994

H.R. 2139. An Act to authorize appropriations for the National Historical Publications and Records Commission for fiscal years 1994, 1995, 1996, and 1997.

### JUNE 10, 1994

H.R. 3863. An Act to designate the Post Office building located at 401 E. South Street in Jackson, Mississippi, as the "Medgar Wiley Evers Post Office".

# JUNE 13, 1994

H.R. 1632. An Act to amend title 11, District of Columbia Code, and Part C of title IV of the District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental Reorganization Act to remove gender-specific references.

### JUNE 16, 1994

 $\ensuremath{\mathrm{H.R.}}$  965. An Act to provide for toy safety and for other purposes.

### JUNE 28, 1994

H.R. 3676. An Act to amend the District of Columbia Spouse Equity Act of 1988 to provide for coverage of the former spouses of judges of the District of Columbia courts.

H.R. 4205. An Act to amend title 11, D.C. Code, to clarify that blind individuals are eligible to serve as jurors in the Superior Court of the District of Columbia.

### JULY 5, 1994

H.R. 1183. An Act to validate conveyance of certain lands in the State of California that